
08-25-2020 
284 

 

Governing Body Minutes – August 25, 2020 

  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, Topeka, Kansas, Tuesday, August 25, 2020.  The 

Governing Body members of the City of Topeka met in special session at 6:00 P.M., with the 

following Councilmembers present:  Hiller, Valdivia-Alcala, Duncan, Emerson and Lesser -5; 

and the following Councilmembers participated remotely:  Padilla, Naeger, and Dobler - 3.  

Mayor De La Isla presided -1.  Absent:  Councilmember Ortiz -1. 

 AFTER THE MEETING was called to order, Joseph Ledbetter provided the invocation. 

 THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was recited by those present in the chamber.  

 Councilmember Valdivia-Alcala asked the Lord to watch over those that are poor and 

oppressed and people of color.  She recognized the Kaw, Kickapoo, Sioux and Osage Tribes. 

 Councilmember Hiller thanked all advocates and staff involved for providing a platform 

of communication.  She recognized the emotion and challenges associated with the topics being 

discussed and expressed her appreciation to those providing their input.  She stated she looks 

forward to reviewing the issues and charting a plan of action. 

 Councilmember Ortiz entered the meeting via Zoom. 

 Brent Trout, City Manager, stated he would provide an overview of each item followed 

by questions from the Governing Body.  He stated City Attorney Lisa Robertson was 

participating remotely via Zoom. 

 A PRESENTATION on the recapping of the events and actions of the City of Topeka 

Police Department and citizen interaction since 2016 was presented by Brent Trout, City 

Manager. 

 A PRESENTATION regarding Qualified Immunity was presented by Brent Trout, City 

Manager.   



08-25-2020 
285 

 

 A PRESENTATION regarding Public Employer-Employee Relations Act (PEERA) was 

presented by Brent Trout, City Manager. 

 A PRESENTATION on the duties and responsibilities of the Independent Police Auditor 

compared with a Citizen Review Board was presented by Brent Trout, City Manager. 

 Councilmember Valdivia-Alcala stated she understands that Qualified Immunity seems to 

be a moot point at the local level; however, there seems to be a move at the state level to hold the 

local level accountable.  She stated many in the community believe the Independent Police 

Auditor position was not completely independent and people want more transparency and 

accountability within the police force.  

 Mayor De La Isla provided a brief overview of the public comment protocol and rules of 

decorum.   

 PUBLIC COMMENT was provided by the following individuals: 
  
  Juanice Crowley requested that a citizen review board be independent from the City to 
avoid conflict of interest. She stated all citizens are asking for accountability of police officers. 
 
  Ron Gish expressed his appreciation to Governing Body members and staff for holding 
the special meeting.  He clarified the Back the Blue organization supports law enforcement and 
condemns any type of criminal activity.  He encouraged folks to attend the Citizen’s Police 
Academy to help them understand a police officer’s job.  He questioned if the rise in crime was a 
direct result of the Police Department eliminating proactive policing.   
  
  Richard Johnson spoke to his advocacy efforts in the community.  He referenced trust and 
social distancing and the importance of understanding a police officer’s duties as a whole.  He 
stated the City of Topeka needs to revert back to old school policing and employ more officers in 
certain areas of the city. 
 
  Joseph Ledbetter spoke in support of the Topeka Police Department and stated he 
believes 98% of Topeka citizens support the Police Department.  He spoke in opposition of 
implementing constraints that prevent police officers from doing their job effectively.  He 
commended Police Chief Bill Cochran for his successful programs related to mental health 
issues and the elimination of gangs in the Hi-Crest Neighborhood.   
 
  Dawn Buttery expressed her appreciation to the Topeka Police Department for the 
positive interactions in the community.  She spoke in opposition of the approving an “8 Can’t 



08-25-2020 
286 

 

Wait” resolution and noted the Topeka Police Department already has policies in place to cover 
these guidelines.  
 
  Shelane Frederick spoke to the chaos happening throughout the nation and cautioned the 
Governing Body against striping the Police Department of the ability to do their job as the result 
of personal agendas. She stated not allowing the police to do their jobs will have an overall effect 
on public safety in the community.  
 
  Sawab (S.J.) Hazim expressed concern with the actions of individuals on both sides of the 
movements for “Back the Blue” and “Black Lives Matter.”  He asked individuals on both sides 
of the issues to do their due diligence before supporting a cause.  He commented on the efforts 
that are working in the community to close racial gaps.   
 
  Melvin Adams stated he believes we are here due to lies being told by the media.  He 
provided statistics of murders of all races across the nation.  He also provided an overview of 
government budgets across the nation in regards to the funding of police departments.  
 
  Ivy LaGrone spoke in opposition of removing qualified immunity for police officers.  She 
questioned how the individuals serving on the citizen review board would be selected and spoke 
in opposition of duplication in services with the Independent Police Auditor position.  She stated 
many things are being proposed under the appearance there was a problem in the Topeka Police 
Department. 
 
  Cain Davis spoke in opposition of creating a citizen review board.  He asked the 
Governing Body to look at community issues and create programs accordingly.  He referenced a 
number of citizens, groups, and organizations already engaging with the Topeka Police 
Department.  He stated the Independent Police Auditor remains completely independent from the 
Topeka Police Department.  
 
  Pastor Greg Bland expressed his appreciation to Governing Body members and Police 
Chief Cochran.  He spoke to the importance of being proactive instead of reactive in regards to 
policing in the community as it relates to positive relationships.  He stated we all need to move 
forward together through volunteerism and personal resources to make a better climate for us all 
to live in and the change starts with us. 
 
  Damon Walker stated he believes qualified immunity allows officers to violate an 
individual’s civil rights.  He expressed the need for police officers to be held to a higher standard 
and if officers are held accountable for their actions then those being violated of their civil rights 
and or harmed will decrease. 
 
  JoAnna Marks spoke to the purpose of the citizen review board and need for open 
transparent accountability while encouraging dialog between all involved.  She explained how 
the citizen review board would be helpful to police officers. 
 
  PJay Carter expressed the importance of education and communication within the 
community.  He stated he believes the agenda as presented serves no purpose to the community 



08-25-2020 
287 

 

because all people are asking for was to feel safe in the community.  He stated they are asking 
for preventative steps to be taken. 
 
  Regina Platt stated we need to look at what we are doing as a community.  She stated the 
citizen review board gives voice to the change in the community and there remains a need for 
restorative justice in order to hold citizens accountable.  She stated it would cost less to operate 
as a restorative community rather than a punitive community and the process would build 
relationships and unite Topeka. 
 
  Anita Austin stated the community needs to be able to trust the police.  She stated she 
was sad and disappointed the meeting has been viewed as an attack on police and noted the 
community continues to ask the City to form good relationships with all involved. 
 
  Courtland Davis stated he believes the creation of a citizen review board was vital.  He 
stated the City needs to build understanding through the board so they can start to build trust.  He 
spoke to the elements that need to be addressed regarding interaction between police officers and 
people of color.  
 
  Glenda Overstreet provided suggestions regarding police reform including the creation of 
the citizen review board.  She referenced the proposed draft ordinance regarding the Topeka 
Citizen Review Board from the Topeka Center for Peace & Justice sent to the Governing Body. 
 
  Stephen Twemlow expressed concern with the need for more physical, technical and 
deescalating tactic training by police officers.  He stated the officers need a minimum of 20 
hours of training in each of these areas. He spoke in opposition of defunding the Police 
Department. 
 
  Joshua Karimi stated as a black citizen there continues to be a problem with targeted 
violence by the Police Department.  He spoke to the need of neighborhood beautification 
projects to replace blight and vacant properties for the purpose of reducing crime and 
acknowledged the need for police reform in all areas of the city. 
 
  Danielle Twemlow spoke in support of system changes that better serve our community 
and reduces gun violence.  She listed a number of actions that need to be taken to confront 
racism in our community and the nation reducing shootings by police and improving the trust of 
the community.  She stated that research shows improving the use of force policies can save 
lives.   
 
  Carol Christensen provided recommendations to improve police reform including focus 
on policy reform and training to build transparency and accountability in police practices while 
improving police and community relations.  
 
  Bill Smallback provided crime statistics of Topeka compared to the nation.  He spoke to 
police department reform related to police brutality and noted crime statistics have continued to 
rise over the past two years.  He stated a majority of the “8 Can’t Wait” policies have already 
been implemented by the Topeka Police Department. 



08-25-2020 
288 

 

 
  Cammie Landholm stated she believes Governing Body members need to spend time 
with the rank and file members of the Police Department to understand the incidents that they 
face.  She asked them to research all the proposals being brought forward by outside 
organizations to ensure these are the right fit for the Police Department.  
 
  Shelby Fehrenbacher stated she supports the Fraternal Order of Police (FOP); however, 
she believes qualified immunity gives officers the ability to kill without consequences even when 
civil rights are clearly violated.  She spoke in opposition of the Independent Police Auditor and 
asked for transparency and the need to end qualified immunity. 
 
  Ariane Davis referenced numerous incidents of police brutality ending in death.  She 
stated the Governing Body must take action to address racism in Topeka and bridge the gap 
between the community and police.  She stated the changes they are lobbying for are not 
unreasonable.  
 
  Wendy Branson expressed concern with the direction the nation was taking and the issues 
occurring in Topeka.  She expressed the importance of the community working together and 
taking care of our police officers and making police reform decisions based on logic not radical 
emotions. 
 
  Nicole Purce spoke in opposition of qualified immunity and would like radical change 
and reform, fairness and equality in the community.    
 
  Michael Bell spoke in support of adopting proactive police reform policies.  He stated 
there was a need to continue discussions with all community members to have successful reform 
that allows the Police Department to protect and serve all members of the community. 
 
  Hannah Hansen spoke to the necessity of police accountability and reform and follow up 
with real actions that prevent the killing of black citizens.  She stated Topeka was no different 
than other cities across the nations that need real sustainable change in police reform. 
 
  Spencer Crowl stated there was a need for an independent body for oversight for 
transparent views that hold police accountable.  He stated there was a need to provide citizens 
with empowerment, a need to modernize infrastructure, and companies to pay more than 
minimum wage.  He stated there should be a neutral third party to handle police incidents such as 
a citizen review board.  He stated more creative training solutions are needed rather than just 
badges and guns.     
 
  Oshara Hayes referenced the “Common Ground” wall mural painted on the Law 
Enforcement Center.  She asked the Governing Body to think about all the citizens and what 
common ground looks like to them and need for more community programs to empower and 
educate our children.  She asked the Governing Body to consider what common ground looks 
like in reference to qualified immunity for police officers.  
 



08-25-2020 
289 

 

  Erica Garcia Babb stated police reform does not mean the defunding of police.  She 
referenced many incidents throughout the nation related to police brutality.  She asked the 
Governing Body members to listen to all voices so they can be heard.   
 
  Jake Mertz referenced the Topeka Human Relation Commission (THRC) police reform 
recommendations and stated the only recommendation he agrees with was the ban on choke 
holds.  He stated police officers need to use all tactics available to stay safe and items need to be 
discussed from both sides of the issues before implementation.   
 
  Tranise Marshall spoke in support of police reform.  She referenced incidents of police 
brutality ending in the death of black people.  She suggested increased training for de-escalating 
situations.      
 
  Shampayne Lloyd expressed the importance to have real conversations about police 
reform practices that are negatively affecting certain race groups.  She stated good leadership in 
government includes considering all social aspects no matter what others opinions might be.  She 
stated division will divide as far as we allow.  
 
  Hannah Schumacher stated she continues to listen and engage those of variety of 
backgrounds and races and the City needs to work towards long-term meaningful change; 
evaluate police use of force and qualified immunity; create a citizen review board; and increase 
transparency and accountability with the goal of public safety.  She encouraged the City to work 
towards the goal of safer neighborhoods and increase trust in the police and decrease shootings 
by Topeka police officers.  
 

 Chris Bush provided an example of an incident of police officers that were protected 
under qualified immunity while violating a person’s Fourth Amendment rights.  He asked the 
Governing Body to think about how it would make them feel. 
 
 Davis Hammet asked the Governing Body to hold police officers accountable and 
implement reform policies that support public safety.  
 
 Jessica Moore stated the bare minimum of change should no longer be the option and 
there continues to be a need to address systemic racism as well as mental health issues in the 
community. 
 
 Kristen Littleton expressed the importance of trauma training.  She stated children in 
poverty have adverse childhood experiences and do not have the ability to know how to react 
in certain situations.  She stated there was a need to reallocate funding to address this type of 
trauma training. 
 
 Bill Welch referenced violent behavior of the Black Lives Matter organization across 
the nation.  He spoke in support of fully funding the Police Department and safety on the 
streets.  He stated the most effective way to reduce crime across the nation was to reduce 
poverty.  
 



08-25-2020 
290 

 

 Pastor Carl Frazier stated the Governing Body should look at recruiting more diverse 
employees within the Police Department.  He encouraged the community to look at items that 
need to be improved and take advantage of these opportunities.   
 
 Matt Blassingame provided statistics of police officer deaths in Topeka and across the 
nation.  He spoke in support of all additional training opportunities including de-escalation 
training.  He stated police officers have a duty to serve and protect, and many times use of 
force was necessary and may not be a choice of the officer. He stated the Topeka Police 
Department was more advanced in police policies than most departments across the nation.   
 
 John Culver stated he echoes the comments of Matt Blassingame.  He stated the 
Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) looks forward to working with the Governing Body and the 
community in a positive manner.    
 
 Glenda DuBoise asked the Governing Body to consider the recommendations that have 
been made by the Topeka Center for Peace & Justice in regards to police reform in the Topeka 
community which would improve relationships in the city. 
 
 Robert Lenth spoke to the previously proposed recommendations that put the lives of 
police officers in danger including the ban on choke holds; a warning before shooting; and 
never shooting a person running away.  He expressed the importance of including police 
officers in the conversations regarding recommendations for reform.  
 
 Tiffani Jones provided a brief overview of personal experiences she had throughout her 
life related to bias and racism when dealing with police officers.  She asked for more training 
for the police officers relating to bias and racism as well as addressing the need for diversity 
within the police force and noted real change comes in numbers.  
 
 Thomas Muther spoke in support of making the police force better and suggested 
revisiting the many studies that have been conducted across the nation for solutions to police 
reform.   
 
 Robert Troupe Jr. referenced shooting incidents in his neighborhood that have slow or 
no response from the Police Department.  He commented on various negative interactions he 
had with the police officers as a youth and expressed the importance of more training for police 
officers. 
 
 Robert Redler stated in reviewing the Topeka Human Relations Commission (THRC) 
police reform recommendations he believes that safety has to come before cooperation.  He 
mentioned abuse of power by a police officer and if it was based on discrimination.  He 
suggested if the proposed changes do not eliminate discriminations then they should not be 
used. 
 
 The following individuals submitted public comment via electronic mail:  Diane 

Reynolds, Pam Arnoldy, Mariyln Ellenz, Richard Koerth,  Martinez Hillard, anonymous 



08-25-2020 
291 

 

comments received by Monique Glaude, Hannah Schumacher, Francis Slobodnik, Lauren 

Christ, Rod Bleich, Echo Van Meteren, Tom and Kaye Stewart, Michael Garrison, Nancy 

Gargan,  Rene Armbruster, Ricky Kennedy, Ann Mah, Dr. Glenda Overstreet, Glenda 

DuBoise, Teresa Miller, Marie Carter, Franklin Williams, Sara Keckeisen, Cindy Branson, 

Addie Juedes, Lauren Kaine, Gale Wollenberg, Dawn Buttery, and Shelby Fehrenbacher.  

(Attachment A) 

  NO FURTHER BUSINESS appearing the meeting was adjourned at 9:38 p.m. 

 

 (SEAL)      

_________________________ 
Brenda Younger 

        City Clerk 












































































































































